
 

COLORADO DIVISION OF RECLAMATION, MINING AND SAFETY 
                 1313 Sherman Street, Room 215, Denver, Colorado  80203  ph(303) 866-3567 
  

 
REQUEST FOR TECHNICAL REVISION (TR) COVER SHEET   

 
File No.: M-      Site Name:    
 
County  TR#   (DRMS Use only)  
 
Permittee:     
 
Operator (If Other than Permittee):    
 
Permittee Representative:    
 
Please provide a brief description of the proposed revision:   
 
     
 
    
 
As defined by the Minerals Rules, a Technical Revision (TR) is: “a change in the permit or application 
which does not have more than a minor effect upon the approved or proposed Reclamation or 
Environmental Protection Plan.”  The Division is charged with determining if the revision as submitted 
meets this definition.  If the Division determines that the proposed revision is beyond the scope of a TR, 
the Division may require the submittal of a permit amendment to make the required or desired changes 
to the permit.  
 
The request for a TR is not considered “filed for review” until the appropriate fee is received by the 
Division (as listed below by permit type).  Please submit the appropriate fee with your request to 
expedite the review process.  After the TR is submitted with the appropriate fee, the Division will 
determine if it is approvable within 30 days. If the Division requires additional information to approve a 
TR, you will be notified of specific deficiencies that will need to be addressed.  If at the end of the 30 
day review period there are still outstanding deficiencies, the Division must deny the TR unless the 
permittee requests additional time, in writing, to provide the required information. 
 
There is no pre-defined format for the submittal of a TR; however, it is up to the permittee to provide 
sufficient information to the Division to approve the TR request, including updated mining and 
reclamation plan maps that accurately depict the changes proposed in the requested TR.   
 
Required Fees for Technical Revision by Permit Type - Please mark the correct fee and submit it with 
your request for a Technical Revision. 
 
Permit Type Required TR Fee Submitted (mark only one) 
110c, 111, 112 construction 
materials, and 112 quarries 
 

 
$216 

 

112 hard rock (not DMO) 
 

$175  

110d, 112d(1, 2 or 3) 
 

$1006  

 

2019-027 Keenesburg Mine

Weld

Colorado Sand Company LLC

Schedio Group LLC

Retention of West Product Storage Building and Immediate Surrounds

✔



 

 

August 27, 2020 

Mr. Peter Hayes, Environmental Specialist 

Colorado Division of Reclamation, Mining and Safety 

1313 Sherman Street – Room 215 

Denver, Colorado 80203 

 

RE: Technical Revision #1: Request for Minor Modification to Reclamation Plan 

Retention of West Product Storage Building and Immediate Surrounds 

 Colorado Sand Corporation LLC – Keenesburg Mine (Permit No. 2019-027) 

 

Dear Mr. Hayes: 

 

Colorado Sand Corporation LLC (CSC) herein respectfully requests that the Division of Reclamation, Mining, and 

Safety (the Division) consider and approve a Technical Revision to Permit No. 2019-027 to reflect a minor 

modification to the proposed/approved Keenesburg Mine Reclamation Plan.   

 

Due to unanticipated scheduling complications that evolved as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, site reclamation 

activities at the Keenesburg Mine have been unexpectedly delayed to date.  In the interim, the underlying property 

owner (Guttersen Ranches LLC) has expressed an interest in retaining one of the former plant structures (please see 

attached Guttersen Ranches Letter dated August 19, 2020), namely the west product storage building and its 

immediate surrounds, in order to support restored ranching activities at the site.  More specifically, the structure and 

immediately surrounding area are depicted in the accompanying Exhibit E-2 (Revision 2): Revised Reclamation 

Plan Map – Retention of Structure, wherein an approximately 1.4-acre sub-area (inclusive of the structure footprint) 

would be excluded or removed from the approved 9.9-acre Permit Area, in which case the sub-area would no longer 

be subject to the prescribed/approved demolition and reclamation obligations.   

 

CSC is, however, poised to commence reclamation activities this week.  Accordingly, Division approval of the 

Technical Revision becomes somewhat “time-critical”, in that CSC wishes to avoid the potential for reclamation 

completion to be followed by a need to later re-mobilize equipment and crews to address structure demolition, should 

the Technical Revision not be approved.  Thus, pending a Division decision, initial reclamation activities are currently 

being focused on facilities/areas other than the west product storage building and its immediate surrounds. 

 

Conveyance of the structure would occur in its current (post-mining) condition, as a structural shell only, and subject 

to the removal of all personal property to include appurtenant mining and/or processing-related equipment and 

materials.  In conjunction with the structure conveyance, Guttersen Ranches LLC would also retain the so-depicted 

entrance road (which pre-existed the mining operation and which is not a part of the “affected” or permit area) and an 

associated parking lot area (which was constructed as part of the mining operation, and is included in the “affected” 

or permit area).   

 

We note that the Guttersen Ranches LLC ranch operations in and around this portion of the ranch are dedicated to 

grazing uses (rangeland), the primary use which Guttersen Ranches LLC indicates would continue subsequent to 

completion of mine closure and reclamation relative to the remainder (non-excluded areas) of the mine site.  Thus, 

there is no proposed change to the designated and approved post-mining land use designation, that being “rangeland”. 

 

If the Division approves this Technical Revision No. 1 request, the otherwise outstanding (i.e., the remaining 8.5-

acres of “non-excluded” area) reclamation obligations will still be carried out in full conformance with the reclamation 

plan, as approved (and subject to this Technical Revision).   However, should the Division not approve the Technical 

Revision, CSC will formally acknowledge such (by written communication) and continue to prosecute all reclamation 

obligations (for the full 9.9-acre Permit Area) in a manner consistent with the approved Reclamation Plan.  The sole 



 

 

basis for this request to modify the approved Reclamation Plan is to accommodate the needs of the underlying 

landowner, while doing so in a manner consistent with Division requirements. 

 

Please note that at this time CSC is not requesting any modification to the current reclamation bond amount.  We do, 

however, anticipate that a formal (partial) bond release request will be submitted subsequent to completion of the 

forthcoming reclamation activities, reflective of a full release for the (to-be-excluded) 1.4-acre portion of the permit 

area, and completion of all other reclamation obligations, exclusive of those amounts to be retained by the Division 

relative to CSC’s five-year duration post-closure monitoring and maintenance obligations. 

 

Both CSC and Guttersen Ranches LLC acknowledge that there may be certain zoning and/or building-related 

considerations which must be dealt with through the Weld County Planning Department.   Based on preliminary 

discussions with the County in this regard, both CSC and Guttersen Ranches LLC envision Weld County approval 

(subject to DRMS approval of the Technical Revision) to be an administrative formality.  However, in the event 

County approval cannot be secured, CSC will retain all liabilities and obligations relative to structure demolition and 

related site restoration activities, as per the approved Reclamation Plan (for which the full bond amount will have 

remained in-place).  Thus, there would at no time be any Division exposure to any outstanding site restoration 

obligation by means of default; all costs, liabilities, and obligations would reside solely with CSC, as the permittee. 

 

Inasmuch as reclamation activities are slated to commence this week, time is of the essence.  Therefore, CSC 

respectfully requests an expedited response to this request, if at all possible, in order to minimize the potential for a 

need to re-mobilize equipment and crews to address structure demolition, should the Technical Revision not be 

approved. 

 

We trust that the foregoing proposed Technical Revision adequately addresses all Division concerns; and, we 

respectfully await a timely decision.  If any further information is required, please do not hesitate to contact the 

undersigned at (303) 968-7677, or via email at tmccarthy@schediogroup.com.   

 

Best regards, 

 

 

Timothy A. McCarthy, PE (on behalf of Colorado Sand Company LLC) 

Schedio Group LLC 

 

cc:  M. Cunningham - DRMS 

S. Guttersen – Guttersen Ranches LLC 

D. Patterson – CSC LLC 

J. Beck – J.M. Beck & Associates 












